
Donoghue, Richard (ODAG)


From: Donoghue, Richard (ODAG)


Sent: Wednesday, November 11, 2020 6:27 PM


To: Boyd, Stephen E. (OLA); Dreiband, Eric (CRT); Rabbitt, Brian (CRM); Sullivan, Katie


(OJP); Williams, Beth A (OLP); Engel, Steven A. (OLC); Clark, Jeffrey (CIV); Demers,


John C. (NSD); Delrahim, Makan (ATR); Zuckerman, Richard E. (TAX); Brightbill,


Jonathan (ENRD); Wall, Jeffrey B. (OSG)


Cc: Murray, Claire M. (OASG); Rosen, Jeffrey A. (ODAG)


Subject: Contact Policies


Attachments: Communication with the WH & Congress.pdf; white house communications with DOJ


memo 20170127.pdf


Folks,


Happy Veterans Day.


My thanks to you and your teams for the tremendous job you all continue to do in difficult circumstances.  While we


are living in distracting times, it is imperative that we ignore the noise and remain focused on the responsibilities in


our respective lanes and that we keep our teams doing the same.


Attached just for reference is the Department’s policy regarding contacts between the Department and the White


House, which was first promulgated in 2009 and continues to govern.  Also, as a reminder, the Attorney General has


delegated to his Chief of Staff, Will Levi, the authority to initiate or receive any communications he would be able to


have under the this policy, as well as the authority to designate subordinates to have such communications where


appropriate.  Finally, it is worth noting that in addition to the Department policy, there is also a White House policy


regarding contacts with the Department.  I have attached that policy here as well.


Thanks again for the incredible work.


If you have any questions about any of this, please let me know.


Thanks,


Rich


Richard P. Donoghue


Principal Associate Deputy Attorney General


Office of the Deputy Attorney General


(202) 514-2105FOR IN
TERNAL S

JC
 U

SE O
NLY

 

DO N
OT D

ISTRIBUTE

SJC-Pre-CertificationEvents-07262021-000680



FOR IN
TERNAL S

JC
 U

SE O
NLY

 

DO N
OT D

ISTRIBUTE

SJC-Pre-CertificationEvents-07262021-000681



FOR IN
TERNAL S

JC
 U

SE O
NLY

 

DO N
OT D

ISTRIBUTE

SJC-Pre-CertificationEvents-07262021-000682



FOR IN
TERNAL S

JC
 U

SE O
NLY

 

DO N
OT D

ISTRIBUTE

SJC-Pre-CertificationEvents-07262021-000683



FOR IN
TERNAL S

JC
 U

SE O
NLY

 

DO N
OT D

ISTRIBUTE

SJC-Pre-CertificationEvents-07262021-000684



1


THE WHITE HOUSE


WASHINGTON


January 27, 2017

MEMORANDUM TO ALL WHITE HOUSE STAFF

FROM: Donald F. McGahn II  Counsel to the President

SUBJECT: Communications Restrictions with Personnel at the Department of Justice


This Memorandum outlines important rules and procedures regarding communications between

the White House (including all components of the Executive Office of the President) and the

Department of Justice. These rules exist to ensure both efficient execution of the Administration’s

policies and the highest level of integrity with respect to civil or criminal enforcement proceedings

handled by DOJ.  In order to ensure that DOJ exercises its investigatory and prosecutorial

functions free from the fact or appearance of improper political influence, these rules must be


strictly followed.

A. Limitations on discussing ongoing or contemplated cases or investigations

DOJ currently advises the White House about contemplated or pending investigations or


enforcement actions under specific guidelines issued by the Attorney General. As a general matter,


only the President, Vice President, Counsel to the President, and designees of the Counsel to the

President may be involved in such communications. These individuals may designate subordinates

to engage in ongoing contacts about a particular matter with counterparts at DOJ similarly


designated by DOJ. Any ongoing contacts pursuant to such a designation should be handled in


conjunction with a representative of the Counsel’s office.

The White House often coordinates more broadly with DOJ (including its Office of Legal Counsel,


Office of the Solicitor General, and Civil Division) where the government is or may be a defendant

in litigation. These communications must first be cleared by the Counsel’s Office. 

If DOJ requests the views of the White House on any litigation, you must consult with the


Counsel’s Office before responding, and any response must be made in consultation with the


Counsel’s Office. This ensures that the White House provides a coherent response that takes

account of both the Counsel’s Office legal views and the President’s broader policy objectives. 

Communications with DOJ about individual cases or investigations should be routed through the


Attorney General, Deputy Attorney General, Associate Attorney General, or Solicitor General,


unless the Counsel’s Office approves different procedures for the specific case at issue.  In their


discretion, and as appropriate for the handling of individual cases, those DOJ officials may 

authorize additional DOJ attorneys to discuss individual cases or investigations with members of

the Counsel’s Office. The President, Vice President, Counsel to the President, and Deputy Counsel

to the President are the only White House individuals who may initiate a conversation with DOJ

about a specific case or investigation. 
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These rules recognize the President’s constitutional obligation to take care that the laws of the


United States are faithfully executed, while ensuring maximum public confidence that those laws

are administered and applied impartially in individual investigations or cases. 

B. Limitations on discussing other matters

The White House may communicate with DOJ about matters of policy, legislation, budgeting,


political appointments, public affairs, intergovernmental relations, administrative matters, or other


matters that do not relate to a particular contemplated or pending investigation or case. You must

route these communications through the offices of the Attorney General, Deputy Attorney General,

or Associate Attorney General unless you have received clearance from the Counsel’s office to


follow different procedures. 

C. Restrictions on soliciting an OLC opinion

The White House often relies upon the Office of Legal Counsel to issue formal legal opinions.

Requests for such opinions must be limited to specific legal questions impacting particular matters

before the Executive Branch. Such requests must be authorized by the President, the Vice

President, the Counsel to the President, or a Deputy Counsel to the President. These individuals

may also designate others who may engage in ongoing contacts with OLC where a request for a

formal legal opinion has been authorized. If this designation extends to individuals outside the


Counsel’s Office, it should be in writing, and the ongoing contacts should be handled in

conjunction with a member of the Counsel’s office. All requests for an OLC opinion shall be

directed to the Attorney General, the Assistant Attorney General for OLC, or one of their

designees. 

D. National Security Exceptions

Frequent communications between the White House and DOJ will be necessary on matters of


national security and intelligence, including counter-terrorism and counter-espionage issues.


Accordingly, communications that relate to urgent and ongoing national-security matters may be

handled by specifically designated individuals. This exception does not relate to a particular


contemplated or pending investigation or case absent written authorization from the Counsel to the


President.  In emergencies for which application of these procedures would pose a serious threat

to national security, White House personnel may receive from DOJ communications necessary to

protect against such threats.  The Counsel to the President shall be informed about any such

contacts as promptly as is practicable.

E. Consultation


If you have any questions or do not believe that a potential contact with DOJ fits neatly into any


of these categories, you must consult the Counsel’s office for guidance. Moreover, unless you are

certain that the particular contact is permissible, you must consult with the Counsel’s Office before

proceeding. 
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